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INTRODUCTION

Ken Brown, President of the Graphic Arts International
Union, was born in Toronto, Canada, in 1925. He left school at
the age of sixteen and apprenticed as a lithographer in Toronto
in 1942. He became a member of Local #12 of the Amalgamated Litho-
graphers Union. His father, Arthur Brown, was president of this
Toronto local. For two and a half years during the Second World
War Ken Brown worked in a topographical unit, then returned to

Toronto to finish his apprenticeship.

In this interview which covers only his earliest years,
Ken Brown recalls his very lithographic-oriented family and their
desire to follow the trade rather than pursue a formal education.
In relation to this, he goes on to contrast the Canadian view of

unionism with that in the United States.



CRAL HISTORY INTERVIEW
with

Xenn=th Brown

2lace: Washington, D.C.

DJate: August 14, 1974

_ntervizwers: Alice M. Foffman
Greg Giebel

HOFFMAN: May - ask you whzt vour name 1is?

3ROWN: Xennzth Cames Brzwn. Current title: President, Graphic
Arts Internationzl Union. Born ir Toronto, Ontario,
Canaia, Mzy 12, .925.

JOFFMAN: Were you the Zirst som or. . . .?

3ROWN: I was one of Zivs children, the middle one of five
chiliren, four bcys and 2 girl. The girl was the oldest
in trhe fanilv. £ the four boys, =zhey're all litho-
grarners. Mv father was a lithcgrapher as well. My
sister was marr:-2d 2 a min:ister. I'm sure rv father told you that
1e considered trat &s close to beinc a lithocrapher as you could get!
{lauchter) At least I've hzard zim say that.

HZOFFMAN: On accourz of Goi is z lithocracher!

3ROWN: (Lauvzhter ill =hings, he says, flow from God and the
unicn, ard he's rot sure that it's in that order!
(mors lauvghter) Righ=! I was an indifferent student at
schcol. I don't thinx school particularly interested me.

I0FFMAN: Wnat kinc¢ of sch:zol d4id vou co to?

3ROWN : Well, even talking abcut elementarv school. I just sur-
viveZ school, rezlly. The thincs that didn't interest
me ware siach things as mathematics and esxact sciences.
And zhe things that 4:id interest rme wers history and
reading, and ccasequantly I was cood in sorme things and lousy in
other things and really didn't have too much intersst in school.
Although, if ycu put that in sor= of the time contaxt that it was
in, I don't surcose very many of my contemzoraries went beyond high
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school. 1In fact, it was fairly rare to even get a high school
diploma. In my case, as soon as I was sixteen, I was out of school
in part because the administration at the school decided I wasn't
really a constructive influence around there. They helped me out
by kicking me out on three occasions.

HOFFMAN: I.W. Abel was kicked out of school, also.

BROWN: Oh, was he? (laughs)

HOFFMAN: He was a bad boy. You were a bad boy, too?

BROWN: Yes. My father had to come to the school on a couple of

occasions to get me back in again, as I recall, but that

was only a matter of keeping me around for another month,

and then I'd get kicked out again. Finally, when I
turned sixteen, I quit. I think it was really quite a disappoint-
ment for my parents, because they did think that I might be the one
in the family to go on in school. I don't really know why they
thought that.

HOFFMAN: Well, what about the quality of the school? I mean, why
were you rebellious, do you think?

BROWN: I wouldn't blame it on the school system because there
were kids that did go on and stay, so it had to be me.
I've asked my mother why I ran awav from home when I was
twelve, you know, and she doesn't tell me why. I don't
think she knows. So it's just a matter of being a kid that wasn't
particularly interested or couldn't see where schooling fit into the
scheme of things for me; or I didn't have much perspective. I'm
damned if I know exactly what it was. In any case, by sixteen I was
out.
One thing, though, that was an overriding influence
my father had been a lithographer which meant he was a craftsman.
He hadn't gone to school beyond about seventh grade, I think, or
eight grade or ninth grade; 1I've just forgotten. About the seventh
I think. And yet he'd been by any measurement a very successful manr
so that we had that nagging in the backgrouné. Why school? My
father did well. Why not follow in his footsteps? And so as each
of the boys . . . my older brother, when he laft school, he came
into the trade. When I left school, I came into the trade. And
my younger brothers, the same thing with them. I'm sure that in
the back of my mine and probably in the back of the minds of my
brothers was the same notion: that they'd be able to go into the
trade in any case and spend five years serving apprenticeship, which
my father frequently likened to going to school. So that I'm certain
that had some influence on our thinking.

HOFFMAN: Well, as far as the quality of the school, though, do
you think that, if the school--ané I'm only assuming
what kind of school it was--if thev had been more pro-
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gressive, more focussed or more oriented on your needs rather than
attempting to force you to meet some kind of outside criterion or
standard, that you might have been more receptive?

BROWN: I really don't think so. I think that there are other

kinds of influences that determine whether kids go on

to school that are more important than the quality of

the schooling. The home influence is one. In the
United States, about seventy-five percent more kids go on and get
high school diplomas and go on to college than is true in Canada.
The number of people that go on and get college degrees in Canada
are a great deal fewer. I don't mean in absolute numbers, but I
mean in proportion to how many go to school. So you have even that
situation. We've noticed the difference between living in Canada
and the United States, that in Canada--we were back there and my
wife's been back there for the summer--the children of my contempor-
aries are not going on to college. 1If they are, it's a very rare
situation. And yet our associates here in the United States, almost
without exception, have children who are going on. Now, why?

I don't think that it's a matter of quality of schooling
or the teaching or anything like that. I think it's an attitude
in part about the importance of higher education. There's much
more emphasis on that in the United States than there is in Canada.
Now, if you go back forty years ago, or thirty-five years ago, in
Canada, you can see that there really wasn't a strong push on among
the children of people who were blue-collar workers. There wasn't
a strong push to go on to school.

HOFFMAN: This may be a diversion, Ken, but it occurs to me now
and I think it may be picking up a thread which we may
elaborate on further, but I had occasion not long ago
to have lunch with an officer of the Carpenters Union,

of the Steelworkers Union, and of the Machinists Union. And I said

that I had recently been at a convention of the Steelworkers Union
and was impressed with the quality of the Canadian delegates, their
ability to take even a position with which they did not agree,
namely the Burke-Hartke Law, and argue more coherently, more logi-
cally for that position, even though they didn't agree with it,
than were the American delegates, who in fact supported it. And
each of these three men--from the Carpenters, the Machinists, and
the Steelworkers--all said that was characteristic of their organ-
izations too. The Canadian delegates were of a very high caliber
and an intelligent and articulate group of people. That has in-
trigued me in the sense that what would account for that? One of
the first thoughts that occurs to you is maybe there's a difference
in the quality of the education system.

BROWN': But if the kids didn't go to school or didn't get beyond
the eighth or seventh or ninth grade, then that can't be
the. . . .
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HOFFMAN: Then you're goinc to have to lock for some other. . .
3ROWN: Sure.

HOFFMAN: . . . explaration.

3ROWN: I think ;aft of it--and by the way, that's true in our

organization. When you intsrview Len Paquette, for

example, you'll Zind that he's a very bright, aggressive

articulate cuy. His head's screwed on vroverly, as they
say. Ard he's undoubtedly coing to be the successor to Vice Presi-
dent Clarke in Canaca. At least if we have our wav he will. Both
Clarke and I feel that he's an excellent man. Clarke himself, Dick
Clarke, is one of the very best vice-rresicents that we've got.

GIEBEL: But not -ust on an individuval basis. I look at the
number cZ lccal mergers that hawve taken place since the
mergers <£f the internationals, toth the Amalgamated and
the Photcencravers ané now the Zookbinders, and it looks

to me as if Canadiarn lccals have nwuch more clearly seen the wisdom

of loca. mergers.

d0OFFMAN: Have beern in the forefront.

2ROWN: Yes. Or =ducaticnal programs or pensicn programs or
whatever
d0OFFMAN: How woulZ ycu account Zor that? We're talXking about a

phenomencn <hat Is not unicue tc the Graphic Arts Union,

but in ¢esneral. I mean, ycu couldn't think really of

four mors diiffersnt urions than the Graohic Arts, the
Steelworkers, the Czrpenters and the Machinists. Thev're all saying
the same thing. They rust be describing a ohenomenon that is pretty
general.

3ROWN: Well, I zhirnk one of the reasons for it has to do with

how Canacdiarns see a union and hcw they see themselves in

a union as contrasted with how Zmericans see unions and

how they see themselves within a2 union. And in Canada
there is a philosopnical base to uniorism, and peoole who belong to
unions, more or less, are influenced by that. That flcws, I think,
from the British heritage and from the German heritage, I suppose,
but parzicularly the British heritage. Anc you'll find that at
local meetings, the parliamentary system a: local meetings is ob-
served so scrupulously in Canada, just beczuse it's so. Yet I've
been to meetings here, and they really don't seem to have any under-
standing of rules oZ order. I think that, again, is a part of the
parliamsntary heritage that they have. Well, now in that structure
the mors articulate pecple come to the for=s.

HOFEMAN: Emerge, es.
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BROWN: I really think that's part of it. Plus the fact that
there is a commitment to some ideals of unionism. I
think they're stronger in Canada among Canadians than
they are in the U.S. I think many members in the United

States are temporarily residing in the union at least in their own

minds until they own the company that they're working for or until

they found their own company. But you'll find a much greater will-
ingness in Canada for people to be considered a member of a union
as his role in life.

HOFFMAN: More of a working-class identity, I think.
BROWN: I think sc.
HOFFMAN : And this might explain why people don't go on to school

in the same way as we do.

BROWN: Yes, yes. Well, that goes back, of course, to the
British system, the screening system they have to deter-
mine whether a person supposedly is capable of going on.
Consequently, a lot of people are culled out and never

do go on to school in Britain. Well, then, they're the parents of

the kids in Canada who decided not to go on to school. Well, it's

an interesting. . . .

GIEBEL: So you inherited, as a young boy, not only a father who
was a trade unionists and in the craft that you eventu-
ally took up, but you inherited a philosophy that was
perhaps different than what many children of the same

kind of background--father and interest in pursuing the same craft--

would inherit in this country. Do you feel that you have roots
planted not only in the American and Canadian labor history, but
also in the British?

BROWN: Yes, oh, precisely. Very much so, as a matter of fact.

In my earliest activities in the local, after I became

a member of the local, I was to be the delegate to the

CCF--Cooperative Commonwealth Federation--which is the
Socialist Party in Canada, and it was labor's political arm in
Canada. Then all of my earliest experiences were in the labor-
political field, but not just political activity, but alignment
with a political philosophy. All of my earliest experiences in the
local were in that area. I was a delegate to the various conven-
tions of the CCF; I went to the labor history courses that they held
at the University of Toronto which were for the most part--in fact
entirely--set up for union people by leaders of the CCF who were
on the staff of the University of Toronto. So I have a vivid re-
collection of those kind of sessions on labor history. So there
was this sort of dual influence, not only in the trade and the
union, but the political field as well.

GIEBEL: Well, now, you left school at sixteen and apprenticed
as a lithographer in Toronto?



Brown #I - 6

BROWN: Yes.
HOFFMAN: Was this your father's local?
BROWN: Right. My father was then the president. That was

1942 and my father was president of the local union.

He arranged for me to start as a feeder on a press at

the Davis Henderson Company in Toronto. I was only
there for about six months before it was clear to the company and
to me that I wasn't suited to be an apprentice or a pressman. I had
really no talent at all in things mechanical. So then I moved from
that company. My father then arranged for me to go to work as a
feeder in the company that he was employed in--Samson Mathews. I
stayed there for a month or so in that job and then moved on up-
stairs into the camera department and the plate department.

My father's fire hand can be seen in the fact that my
brother was in the same company with my father, my older brother.
He was moving to Ottawa to take a job in a litho company, so my
father moved me into the plant so that I could step into my brother's
job. I stayed in that company for a couple of years, a year and a
half. During that time I joined the local union, and then I went
into the Army. In the Army I was in a litho unit, a topographical
unit. So I stayed right at the trade for the two and a half years
that I was in the Army. Then when I came out of the Army, I came
right back to Samson Mathews and finished my apprenticeship.

HOFFMAN: Where were you stationed while you were in the Army?

BROWN: Oh, let's see. I did my basic training in British
Columbia and then went overseas to England and then was
assigned to a mobile map reproduction unit in France
and Belgium and Holland and Germany. When the war ended,

I was just outside of Rotterdam, I think it was, in Holland. When

the European war ended, I promptly signed up for the Japanese war

because they had a point system for rotation. I had so few points,
as compared to everybody else in the unit, that I figured I'd be
doing guard duty in Berlin until I was age fifty at least. (laughter)

Because, you know, in the Canadian Army the guys had started in the

Army in September, 1939. So they all had points galore, and I was

Johnny-come-lately, with one year overseas. So I signed for the

Pacific and they gave me thirty days leave, shipped me back to

Canada; and while I was back in Canada, the war with Japan ended.

HOFFMAN: Fortunately.

BROWN: That meant that I was home ahead of everybody else!
(laughter) There were only two guys in our unit that
joined.

HOFFMAN: It's better to be lucky than smart! (laughter)
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BROWN : My mother, when I got home, just about died when she
found cut that I'd signed up for the Japanese situation.
My God, her son had survived the European war! Why did
ne ever do this? I said to her, "My gosh, since I
managed a soZt berth during the war in Europe, I was confident that
I'S find one in the Jaranese situation anyway!" (laughter)

HCZFMAN: Sc what was the trade like, printing maps under wartime
conditions? What were the shops like?

BRCWN: Wwell, when I was in England, we worked in a regular litho
ant; but when we went to the continent, we were in a
icbile unit. They had all of the cameras and plate-
maxing and stripcing and presses all mounted in trucks.
Motorcycle drivers would come whistling in with the aerial photo-
graphs, ari ¢ tecoographical guys would interpret them and come up
with flzts. +We'd do the camera work and make the plates and put
tham on ths= ses anc run them ofZ. 1In a day or so they'd be de-
rcat lines again. It was very interesting. We were
generally zbout five tc twerty miles behind the lines. It was a
falrly comZorzable existence. We had air conditioning in our trail-
ers beczuss they zad to have that sort of thing for the camera de-
partmenz, and the unit was considered super in that they had a high

O

S
£
L

priority from the poinz of wiew of a selection of personnel. That

meant trat ths unit was staifed mostlv with members of our local.

We've gct thctograodhs that zppeared in a magazine back during the

war with azout forty of us zl1ll from Local #12, Toronto, or from

Mentrea_ =17 or Oztawa. So they were all lithographers and members
£ the loczls.

GIZBEL: 312 thev recognize you as an apprentice in the truck
or how did that work out?

s Z had a pretty cood standing because everybody

2w that myr father was then the vice-president of the
inzernational for Canada. Quite frankly, a lot of people
xnew that they were going to be looking for jobs back in
the industry, so I had sort of a pretty good status.

BRZWN: b 4=

A

HCZFMAN: Xe

21 Brcwn was sorebody that it was obviously a good
ice

a tc be Zriencdly with!

BROWN: Right, right! But I was only about eighteen or nineteen.
I thinx I turned twenty when I was in Europe. As far as
the trade was concerned, the work was not high quality
Oor not particularly difficult. So the limited experience

I nad hzd in the shop back in Canada stood me in pretty good stead.

It was rerstitious, you know. You weren't doing brochures on one

and ani posters cn the other hand. All you were doing was map work.

Orce yo: rza’lv zsroed in on that, it wasn't too difficult. It was
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When I was in England I worked in a British map repro-
duction unit. There were only five or six Canadians assigned to
this, and all of the lithographers in the plant were members of the
British trade union. We five were all members of the Canadian
lithographers union. Bob Edison, the president of Montreal, was
one. George Green, who was a plate-maker in Toronto, was another.
We three, plus another three or four fellows, were assigned to the
British unit. So we had some delightful experiences. But it just
sort of went hand-in-glove. You were a lithographer and you were
a member of the union and you were in the map reproduction unit.
That was a logical extension of the first two things. That you
were going to come back to the trade, all that just. .

GIEBEL: And how were the British fellows that you met? Were
they in a similar situation?

BROWN: Yes, oh, sure. They were temporarily out of the shops
during the war. This was really a good bit of duty,
as they used to say, because they were working as they
did in the shops. The only difference was their pay.
But because we were lithographers, the craft was considered such
that we had to have adequate rest and we were never given any guard
duty or anything like that. So it was a nice kind of duty to be
stuck with during the war.

HOFFMAN: So at the end of the war in Germany, you returned to
Canada?

BROWN: Went back into Samson Mathews, the same shop that I had
worked in when I joined the Army, and finished my
apprenticeship.

An amusing incident: when everybody was trying to get
out of the Army, one of the ways to get out after the war ended
was to have your former employer write a letter on your behaf.

So the president of the company, or the general manager of the
company, wrote on my behalf to the Army to assure them that there
was a job waiting for me when I came out. So that facilitated my
getting out. But he was cute enough in the letter to say that
there was a job available for me at precisely the wages and work-
ing conditions that I had enjoyed at the time that I had enlisted!
(laughter) A fellow by the name of Harry Saunders, was general
manager. Two and a half years later he was still making sure that
he didn't have to give me a wage increase! So at a cool twenty-six
bucks a week, I went back to work in the trade!

HOFFMAN: Regardless of your experience in the Army. What kind
of a shop was this?

BROWN : Very good shop. High quality. They produced some of
the best quality work in Toronto. 1In fact, in Canada

it was known as a high quality shop. They did posters
for cigarette advertising and cosmetics and the clothing
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industry. An excellent shop. My father had been the superintend-
ent; I think that was his title. When they first went into litho,
they hired him. So he sort of grew with the litho in the place.

So it was a good place to learn the trade, but more important, it
was a good place to learn about unionism, because I worked with my
father, who was president of the local. The man who became presi-
dent after him was Norman Harlock, and he worked in the same depart-
ment that I worked in at Samson Mathews.

HOFFMAN: Now this was the camera department?

BROWN: In the plate department. I worked the camera in the
plate department. After the war, I came back into the
plate department. My father had become international
vice president; Norman Harlock had become president of

the lccal union. He was in the plate department at Samson Mathews

so I worked with him. After Norman Harlock, the president of the
local was 3ill Shirsten, who was a pressman in Samson Mathews. So
not onlv did ycu have an apprenticeship in the trade, you had an
aporenticeship in the union in that the top officers of the local
were working irn that plant.

I think there were only about twenty lithographers in the
whele ctlacs, sc that every noon hour and every coffee break and
every session after work was devoted to discussion of union affairs,
which was a rare opportunity for a young man to be a part of those
kinds oI discussions every day. Lots of people belonged to the
local unicn, but there wasn't anybody else who was able to sit with
the oZZicers every day and talk about what was going on in the local
union. Sc that had a good effect, in the educational sense, in
setting my thirking about the correctness of the union and its ob-

(o4
jectives, a very good effect.

END OF INTERVIEW
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OR:AL HISTORY INTERVIEW #IZ

with

Kenneth Brown

Place: Washingtecn, D. C.
daze: December .1, 1374
Inzerviewers: Al:ce M. Eo>ffman

Grz=g Gisbel_

HOZZM=! /=% The =nc of the las: irnzerview we were/ Find of
tracinc wour rise in the l:zcal to zecoming local union
orasidenz.

BRIWN: Oxzw. Zc wnen I came dack from th=z service, there were
Julzz 2z ~umcer of fellows zhat wers in the same unit
thzt I wazs In overseas beczuse 1t was a map reproduction
unit and thesy were in the Zocal. 3o it was kind of

cr tnhe "_3_1 " croup to star: becoming active in the local
hz 1zho Industry was beginrn:ng to expand, showing the

ns ¢ exzansion, immediztely fcllowing the war; and
neavy ~igration into Caneia from “estern European

Tne infusicon of goed trade unionists from the European
rizs, I thinx, was verv helrful--from Erzland, from Germany,
Tn2 Szarndina~tizn countries.

. Manz coed Lithocraphers czme in, so the local began to

Sc ¥ou wsre really a cosmccolitan Zocal.

BRCWN: Yes. Ths rzason I think iz was particularly good is
iz ¢id <wo zthings: it sugpzliec¢ craftsmen for an expand-
irg incdustry at a time when thev ware needed; it per-
mittad the local union to retain its traditional appren-
ticeshiz ratios. Sc it served everykcdy well, but it was also an
infusicn c= cocd :trzde unionists intc our loczl. In other words,
I zhinx it has had, ir an ongoinc sernse, a strengthening effect on
ths loczl. ©So thz: akout that time I began to attend committees on
ths loczl, ard then I was elected rerresenzative to the Toronto
Districz Lzbcr Council--the kind of 3cbs that not too many people
wanted Zo 2other wizh. But I also went to school, you know, trade
union schcol, cncs wzek or whatesver it was during that period.
I was ==2ryv ac:tlve the

C.C.F. Party as the local's representative

tc the Z.C.F.--Ccczzra Commonweal:th Feleration--attending their
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conventions ané so cn. So that my earliest activities in the local
would be ticical, I suppose, of anybody who sat on committees. . . .

ZOFFMAN: well, I'm not sure they would be typical because it does
souri to me--and please don't hesitate to correct me if
2'm wronc--but it sounds to me as if your activities

were labcr movement activities rather than exclusively
trade activities; that is, vou were involved in the Central Council
and you werz irvolved ctolitically. That's not the same kind of
raining thzt ycur tvpical business rep has.

3ROWN: 72s, ves. Well, that's an important distinction to make,
her.. I hadn't guite thought about it as compared to
>ther zecole. It just seemed to me to be the normal
Thinz to be doing. But that was my earliest activity

in the loczl--ccmmitzees of the local and then the Central Labor

Council, tizz=n the oclitical side.

ZOFTMAN: was zhe Central Labor Council an active organization?

3RCWN: e2s, it was. But it was dominated by the Building Trades,
2s - reczll, the Builéding Trades, and then the Steelwork-
zrs nad a very active man, Murray Cotterill, and Dave
~rchzr--I've forgotten which union he came out of. It

was a Izir’y gcczd ccuncil as those councils go. I think frequently

thev ternd =: become sort of protectors of the status quo.

ZOFTMAN: ighs

3RCWN: Z think the Toronto Council was a little more aggressive

>n scclal issues than a good many other councils that
=1

_'ve neard zbout.

Cher. I was elected to the negotiating committee. That
joes a _itzls Zurther than it sounds in this respect: In Eastern
Carada ther nhavz a contract, a single contract, covering Toronto,
Mortrea., =zmilzon, London, Ottawa, and Halifax, Nova Scotia, and
we negczlatz orz cortract with the employers, covering all those
cities. Sz that when vou go on the negotiating committee, you're
involvei in oolicyv cesvelopment for the whole of Eastern Canada and
Zor imr_emzntation cf that oolicy through bargaining. It's quite a
orcaderinc zxperience.

d0FTMAN: Zow _ong nad this been in effect when you went on that
megcziating committee, this kind of eastern industry-
~ide barcaining?

3RCWN: h, well, let me think. . . . Yes, it probably had been
zoirz on in terms of a formal contract since about 1940.

HOFFMAN: S0 1z was reslatively new?
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BROWN: Yes, it was. And undergoing all of the usual problems
because you had small locals and large ones and you had
some people full-time working for the unions, but most
working part time. 1It's an interesting study the way

that developed over the years, because at that time you had a full-

time international vice-president and I believe one representative
for Canada. And the chairman of the multi-city bargaining was the
international vice-president. Of course, he happened to be my
father. But that was a very broadening experience.

Some of the officials of the other locals, Montreal parti-
cularly, the new leadership in those locals, were also fellows that
I had been in the Army with, who were in the topographical survey or
map reproduction.

HOFFMAN: Like who?

BROWN: Bob Edison, specifically. Bob is president of the Mon-
treal local--just ratired--for about twenty years. Pete
Bosky was very active. Of course, on the Toronto commit-
tee Ivan Tutelov was very active, and he too had been in
the same unit. So that we used to get together on two fronts. But
that was only a reflection of the business of the fellows returning
from the service and becoming active in their local unions.

I was also elected to the local council, the Toronto

Local Twelve Council; I sat or that board for some time. I've for-
gotten now just how long. I think at one point I was elected fin-
ancial secretary. . . no, vice-president, for the local. I don't

think I was ever financial secretary. I think I was elected vice-
president in about 1952. So I suppose the pattern was to work
through committees, to be invclved in the political side, to be in-
volved in the negotiations, ard then to be elected vice-president
of the local, which was still a non-fulltime position. There was
only one full-time office in Toronto.

HOFFMAN: Maybe we ought to back up just a little bit and talk
about this major pension strike.

BROWN: 194972

HOFFMAN:  Right.

BROWN: I don't know that it had anything to do with pension.
The major issue was money, representation for the union,
and health and welfare. I was not on the negotiating
committee at the time of that strike, so that I wasn't

as directly involved in the pclicy side of it in 1948. I was still

in fairly minor jobs, perhaps on the local council, as I recall,
and on some committees. I was also on the first committee of the

unemployable benefits plan, which started in 1943, every member of
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the local putting a quarter a week into a fund with the understanding
that, when there was $25,000, we'd form a committee and set up some
kind of pension. We called it unemployable benefits because under
the Canadian law, if you called it pension, we would have come under
supervision of all kinds of laws that would have been burdensome.

So we called it unemployable benefits. That's another whole story,
but that's been a highly successful plan and still is in existence
today.

When I got back out of service, I went on the board,
which is the very first board that was formed, and of course, became
the chairman. We actually designed the by-laws that are in existence
today and, more important, set the tone for having it properly
studied by an actuary once a year so as to run it in a businesslike
fashion.

The strike in 1949, when it began I was working in a
trade shop in Toronto and wasn't with any of the companies that were
actually picketing. I was fairly active in the local and on the
council, as I recall, at that time, not on the negotiating committee.
So that I worked at the bench all during the strike in one of the
companies that was not on strike. There were the usual amount of
problems as to where the work that we were doing was being shipped,
and so we had terribly hostile atmosphere in the plant between the
management and the people. Every now and again we'd hear that manage-
ment was attempting to ship some of the work to one of the companies
that was attempting to break the strike. Of course, we would be do-
ing all we could to prevent that. So it was sort of watching the
strike from the sidelines.

I was involved, however, with the business agent of the
local in an effort that we made in Buffalo, New York where a company
was supplying materials to some of the struck companies in Toronto.
We were directed to come over to Buffalo and meet with the company
president and try to persuade him not to get into the middle of our
fight.

That strike, while it's clear in everybody's memory be-
cause it lasted for about six months and covered Toronto and Montreal
and Hamilton and London, was not one in which I was involved as an
officer of the local. Consequently my participation in the strike
was not on the level, let's say, of Vice-President Dick Clarke, who
was at that time president of the Montreal local and who would have
a much different picture of it than I would, in that he was so deep-
ly involved.

HOFFMAN: Okay. Well, now, you were vice-president of the Toronto
local. Who was president at that time?

BROWN: Bill Kennedy. The Toronto local in that postwar period
had some very severe and bitter political fights. 1It's
amazing that the local maintained such a high level of
representation and integrity in the face of such bitter



Brown #II - 5

political fights. As I say, the postwar group was coming back, and
a new full-time position had been created. Different people were
contesting for the position, and they very foolishly set up a sys-
tem where they had a president of the local, not fulltime and a
business agent, full-time. That meant that the president had the
title and had the ego and no direct involvement on a day-to-day
basis. But that didn't alter the fact that he felt that he should
be telling the business agent what to do. The business agent, on
the other hand, was a very strong-minded guy, deeply involved and
having to take orders from a man who was not so deeply involved. So
finally we did have a blow-up. The president, who was not full-time
ran against the business agent and defeated him, and after six
months resigned because he couldn't stand the gaff. So Bill Kennedy
became president under those circumstances. He was the vice-
president in this period; he became president. I became vice-
president. That was kind of an exciting time as far as politics
were concerned.

HOFFMAN: Now, were these kind of one generation against the other?

BROWN : No. They were all--everyone of the people that I men-
tioned--had all been in the Army and come back.

HOFFMAN: So what was the nature of the political dispute, then?

BROWN: The creation of the full-time position.

HOFFMAN: I see.

BROWN: That was the key. It was the fading dominance of the

largest company in Toronto, at least as I read it now.

The largest company in Canada was the Rolfe-Clarke-Stone,

by any measurement of big companies of perhaps two or
three hundred lithographers. They had provided much leadership and
dominance in the local for a good many years, as you can imagine.
The president of the local came out of Rolfe-Clarke-Stone and had
their support; the business agent did not.

HOFFMAN: Now, you mean, when you say "had their support. . . "

BROWN : Had the support of the people in Rolfe-Clarke-Stone.
They got that single group, yes.

HOFFMAN: Who worked there, right.
GIEBEL: How large was the total membership at that time?
BROWN : About 700 members, if I recall.

HOFFMAN: So a bloc of two hundred votes was pretty important.
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BROWN: Yes, if they were activists, it. pzetty well set the stage.
So that's where the struggle was: who was going to run
the local and how was it going to be run, and responsive
to what? The business agent was a very aggressive guy,

the full-time man. The president of the local out of Rolfe-Clarke-

Stone was an intelligent, mild-mannered "Clark Kent" who, like so

many other people in this life, who are intelligent enough to know

the problem, intelligent enough to see the solution, but don't seem
to be able to implement it. Whatever that other essential ingredient
of being a leader is, he lacked that. He could analyze the problem;
he could see the solution, but he didn't seem to have the guts to
make the solution.

HOFFMAN: Now, what was the solution?

BROWN: Well, on any issue. You name any issus that the local
was up against.

HOFFMAN: Oh, I see. I thought you meant the sclution in terms of
the power of the business agent.

BROWN : No, no, that characterized his administration. He just
didn't have the kind of strength that ou need to imple-
ment a solution, whatever it was. So =hat when he
finally was pressed by his supporters =-o run against the

business agent--which he did--he defeated him, to the job full time

and then in six months resigned. Which I think was the final piece
of evidence that he didn't really relish the con:tsst, because it's

a hostile atmosphere you're in--the members on ons hand, employers

on the other hand.

HOFFMAN: Right. You can't be anybody's good gux.

BROWN: You really can't be. In a local union, you know, since
I was the president for half-a-dozen yesars, you do
ninety percent of your business with tsn percent of the
members. They're either the activists in the local or

they're the people in trouble. The front row at svery local union

meeting is filled by the guys who are unemployed or have a bitch.

They're all there, confronting you. Well, you've got to be a cer-

tain nature to take that gaff every day. This guv didn't like that

stuff.

So that what we did was change the syszem and made the
president a full-time man. We experimented with <his other system.
As a concession . . . the reason we set up this business agent/
president business, was a concession to those peorle who thought
that an all-powerful president, full time, would dominate the local,
and they wanted to preserve their right to have a chairman who was
not full-time, who could run the meetings impartizlly and so on.

HOFFMAN: Who came from the bench and so forth.
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BROWN: Yes. Great theory, but in practice is not worth the
powder to blow it to hell.

HOFFMAN: Now, was this changed after you became president or
before?

BROWN: Before. Bill Kennedy became the first president, full-

time. And I was vice-president of the local. Bill had

a very stormy term of office, very stormy. He had all

these young guys like myself breathing down his neck.
He felt surrounded and beset from all sides, mostly in the political
sense. I guess his constituency--he was a pressman--the press de-
partment represented about fifty percent of the local, but were not
the activists in the local generally. The activists were out of the
preparatory end. Some pressmen were active, but generally speaking
they came out of the preparatory end. The reason for that, they
always said, was that in a pressroom it's too goddamn noisy to talk!
(laughter) But in the plate department and the camera department,
all you did was lean a:.und and talk about union affairs! (more
laughter) So you couldn't become a union official out of the press-
room and be well informed. That was the theory.

HOFFMAN: They didn't have as much time to cook up political plots!
BROWN: That's right.
HOFFMAN: Okay. Well, why don't we just quickly insert a sentence

as to how you decided to run for president. Then, after
lunch we'll take up some of the issues that came up
during your presidency.

BROWN: There had been--you mentioned pensions earlier--there
had been a very interesting, spirited set of negotiations
where we launched the Canadian pension plan while Bill
Kennedy was president, and we had negotiated this first
employer-paid plan, a very modest beginning, I think seven cents an
hour. When we went back to the members to report out, they blew us
off the platform and rejected the package and we had to go back
again. I was on the negotiating committee and vice-president by
this time. We had to go back again and smarten up the package.
That was one of my early experiences in having proposals rejected.

HOFFMAN : Now, this was going to be an employer contributory
plan?
BROWN: Contributed, not contributory. Employer-paid, strictly

employer-paid. 1I'll always remember those negotiations

because it was a great first time, when I was a part of

a committee that was recommending something that was re-
jected, and it's interesting that, even though I had been a strong
spokesman in favor of acceptance, not long after that I was elected
president of the local. So nobody seemed to sort of hold it against

¢
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you, the fact that you were on the wrong side of a particular de-
bate. They didn't seem to hold it against you; they seemed to under-
stand. It was also a great experience for me in that that's one
time when I could see that if you negotiate something you had to

get up and sell it. Your job was only partly done when you've nego-
tiated it. 2resenting it to the members was every bit as important
as negotiating it.

B:11l Kennedy, shortly after those negotiations, resigned
in the middle of a term and I decided to run. I was already vice-
president of the local. The biggest thing against me was my age
because I was only twenty-eight at the time. In our local you haé
to be around a long time before anybody listened to you. Fortunate-
ly I had lost my hair at an early age and looked a little older than
I was. So that's how I became president, a very interesting election.

HOFFMAN: Did you serve out Bill Kennedy's term?
BROWN: Yes.

HOFFMAN: And then ran?

BROWN: Y2s. I won that first election, as I recall, by nine
votes.

HOFFMAN: So you didn't have an exactly overwhelming mandate.

BROWN: Nc, but I drew comfort from that because I figured there's
only way to go, and that's up!! Only one way to go is

us because if I tried to placate various segments of the
mambership, I'd soon wind up without even those nine
votes. So I decided just to run with it.

HOFFMAN: Right. Okay. Fine.

(Interruption for lunch break)

HOFFMAN: I think I had said something about it's not exactly
being an overwhelming mandate! (laughter)
BROWN: Right. So now we get into the business of the time frame,

I guess, of when I became president. Right? I should

have mentioned that I attended my first convention of

the then Amalgamated Lithographers while I was vice-
president of the union. That was in Toronto, as a matter of fact.

HOFFMAN: While Blackburn was still president?

BROWN: Y2s. John Blackburn was president. That was in 1943,
Royal York Hotel. Things that I recall about that con-
vantion: one, Walter Reuther was a guest speaker;
two, the Photoengravers were meeting the same week in
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the same hotel, and Matthew Woll, I think, was president then. That
I'm not certain of, but I believe it's true.

HOFFMAN: Now, this was before disaffiliation from the AFL? What
year did you say this was?

BROWN : 1943. I don't think it was before, no.

HOFFMAN: No, because it was in 1945.

BROWN: We were still in the AFofL, I guess, at that time.

HOFFMAN: What's causing my ears to come to a point obviously is

that Walter Reuther was in speaking to the convention
while you were still affiliated with the AFofL.

BROWN: Yes, okay. And the other speaker was Wayne Morse, Senator
Wayne Morse. Right, that was in 1943. That was my first
convention. I had been elected a delegate to the previous
ALA--Lithographers--convention two years earlier, which

was held, I think, in Dallas, Texas. But at the same time, the then

Canadian Congress of Labor was holding its convention in Vancouver,

and it was decided that as vice-president I should go to that con-

vention. The point being that my first convention was in 1943, at
the Royal York Hotel in Toronto.

The significance of my recalling Reuther being there was

that obviously he made quite an impact on me. Secondly, the Photo-
engravers were meeting in the same hotel at the same time and we did
exchange. . . . the international presidents. . . . Blackburn went

to their convention and Matthew Woll, I believe it was, came to ours
and talked, which was an indication of the very good relationship
that there was. I don't think that had been arranged in advance.

I think it was almost an accident.

HOFFMAN: Just fortuitous, yes.
BROWN : Yes. Not much else occurred in that convention of great
significance. There was a resolution submitted curiously

enough by the Toronto local, calling for election of a
vice-president for Canada by Canadians.

HOFFMAN: Oh, boy! (laughs)

BROWN: And that's what, twenty years ago?
HOFFMAN: More than twenty years ago.
BROWN: Thirty years ago? What is it?

HOFFMAN: Well, twenty-five or thirty years ago.
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BROWN: Yes. It was submitted and roundly and soundly defeated
at that time. I think the reason for it being submitted
since it came out of the Toronto local, had to do with
the desire of some people to get the Canadian vice-

presidency under the thumb of the Canadian locals. It had nothing

to do with any noble sentiments with respect to relationship between

Canada and the U.S. or Canadian nationalism. It was purely a poli-

tical venture at that time. I only mentioned it because it's now

reared its head again for totally different reasons. I think for
totally different reasons! I'm not so sure! (laughter)

HOFFMAN: Okay, well, now, you find yourself a rather young presi-
dent of a large and vigorous local.

BROWN: I think we were about the tenth largest local at the
time. That's a guess, but I think it was somewhere around
that, which meant that we had some standing in the total
picture as far as unions were concerned.

HOFFMAN: Just as a personal question, if you don't mind my asking,
did you consult your father for advice? Or were you kind
of, you know, going it on your own and getting advice
from other sources?

BROWN: If you talk to anybody in Toronto, they are absolutely
convinced that my father had a grand plan that, when I
finished my apprenticeship, I became a salesman in the
industry and after being a salesman for awhile I came back

into the trade and then was active in the local and then became vice-

president and so on. Anyone would tell you that it was a grand plan,
that this was all part of the training that I was supposed to be
undergoing to take some position in the union.

My father and I did not at any time ever talk in specific
terms about my future. I'm certain, however, although I have no
specific recollection, I'm certain that I did ask him about running
for office, for the presidency, the full-time job, because, you see,
that was a terribly important decision. Everything else was just a
matter of identifying yourself as a member of the union and being
active; but when you decided to run for the full-time job, that was
a key decision. I'm sure that I talked to him about it, and I'm
guite sure that he said, "Go ahead," although I don't have a speci-
fic recollection. I'm absolutely sure that I would have talked to
him about it, as I have discussed with him over the years almost any
key decisions with respect to the union. Yes, the answer is yes.

HOFFMAN: Was that a factor, perhaps, in your getting elected?
That some people said, "Well, he's young, but after all
he'll have good advice."

BROWN: Yes, I have no doubt that being a Brown and having a
father who was president of that local union back in
1942 and 43, or whenever it was, and then becoming an
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international vice-president in 1943 and '44. . . yes, the answer
is I had a leg up, a helping hand. I don't know that people ever
analyzed it, except that the Browns were very much involved in the
local union's affairs.

HOFFMAN: Right. Okay, well, what were some of the negotiating
issues and organizational issues which confronted you as
the local union president?

BROWN: The very £first thing we ran into, of course, was our
drive to go to the thirty-five-hour workweek, I guess.
That would be it. We made that a bargaining objective--
the thirty-five-hour workweek. We were successful. So
that was the number one thing that came on the scene right after my
becoming president, the shorter workweek. The United States had
already achieved it, by-and-large, and we set it as an objective for
Canada. I was obviously fairly influential in determining the ob-
jectives in Eastern Canada--president of the largest local--and
aggressively presented my ideas so that the shorter workweek came
out as a very important issue. Beyond that we'd already established
a health and welfare plan, so that we were talking about refine-
ments of the contract. We'd already won our major battle with the
employers in a six-month strike about whether the union would sur-
vive or not, so that wasn't the issue any more. So that the
shorter workweek was the number one drive, and we plowed ahead on
that and won the issue. As president of the Toronto local I became
the spokesman for Eastern Canada in the sense that I presented the
arguments before the emplovers on the question of the shorter work-
week.
I don't think that there were any other new concepts.
In fact, I know that there weren't any other new concepts that we
dealt with other than the reduction of the workweek. Oh, you know,
we added to the vacations, and we added to the number of holidays,
and we perhaps varied the overtime provisions and strengthened the
contract language; but that's a part of every set of negotiations.
As far as new concepts, the shorter workweek.

HOFFMAN: I think we have to correct a date. You became president
in 195. . .?

3ROWN: 1954.

AOFFMAN: In 1954 while George Canary was president. That was my
mistake. I said your first convention George Canary was

president, right?

BROWN : No, you said the first convention John Blackburn was
president and that's correct, because I was vice-presi-
dent, non-full-time vice-president of the local at that
time.

JOFFMAN: Oh, all right, okay.
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BRCWN: And the following vear, 1954. .
HOZFMAN: George Canary. . . .
BRCWN: Ooors! Wait a minute! The following year I became the

oresident oZ the Toronto local.

END OF TAPE I, side 1

BRCWN: Well, hsre was this great political fight going on and
the wori sesping into the membership that, God, they're
fightirg like crazy on the top znd Ed Swayduck proposing
to me that I become the president. I felt very strongly

thzt thsre neeced zo bs an orcderly assumption of authority as per

ths constizuticn. Now, it's just like in zny kind of revolution

thzt's going orn, I ths peoole get the feeling that out of left
fizld leaczrshio Is pooping up, that doesn't give them a very com-
fortinc fezlinc. 30 I turned it down, saii "No." I felt strongly

thzt the f_rst vics-prasident shculd take zhe presidency. And
thzt's when we zhen said, "Okav, you becoms the assistant to the
prssident, and then we'll put vou in posit:ion." There was nothing
mers said zbout it again at that time. Bu: there wasn't very much
of a broac understanding at all.

HOZTMAN: Rigrht. I don't think this convsrsation that took place
in Clevslani is wicely known.

BRCWN: Oh, ves? EJ Hanson, the vice-president of the New York
loczl, z2nd I, walked cut oI the meeting. We walked down
the haZl. =e savs, "Ken, vou'rs out of your mind." I
saic, "Why?" He said, "Those chances don't come by

tw_ce. Yc: get 'em. . . ." I think he sa:d, "Grab the ring when

it's orn tkz wav byv" or somezhing like that. I said, "No, I don't
agree. I'z= not talking about whether the chance will come back
agzin for me, zut I think iz would be unwise for us to be a party
to this kinmd oZ a take-over of the organizztion in the face of what

we've seer. in :this meezing."

GIZBEL: So much easier, just as hindsight, to make you a politi-
cal target, to view you as someone that, in a moment of
crisis, would grab for power ani. . . .

BRZWN: t would hawve besn brutal, really. Even if we could have

I
swung 12, 1t would have been a nell of a way to come in.
I had, thankfulls, the sense at that time. . . .

HCZFMAN: Wel_, ou would have had to coms in as George Canary's
executioner, for orns thing.
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BROWN : Yes, in a way, that would have been the role. It would
have. Chicago was so upset. There was no way that
Swayduck could have gotten a cool agreement out of them.
So I take full credit for having told Swayduck at that
time, "Uh-uh, nothing doing. It would not be good for me. It would
be unwise for you to be a party to it, and I don't think it would be
good for the organization." You can reverse that if you want to:
it would have been bad for the organization. So that's when the big
move was made to put Pat Slater in with the clear understanding that
he would fill out the balance of the term.

HOFFMAN: So you spent one year as Pat Slater's administrative
assistant?

BROWN: Yes, assistant. Right. That's right. Used to run the
Council meetings when he was president. It was funny.

I had to make up the agenda and get all the material

ready. We'd start the meeting and I'd give Pat all the
stuff. I used to sit immediately to his left, as I recall, in the
board meetings in New York. He'd say, "All right, we'll take item
number so-and-so. Well, Ken, go ahead on this one." Right? 1It's
a long week and a difficult week, the Council meeting. It's ex-
tremely difficult for the chairman. It's no mean task to chair a
meeting of that number of people for a solid week. They're not
puppy dogs. All you have to do is let up a little bit, and they
jump on you. As the week would wear on, Pat would get tired. He
even had occasions when he'd literally be asleep in the chair, you
know. He was a man of seventy-two, and there was no reason for him
to do anything otherwise. His adrenalin wasn't flowing. (laughter)
They were interesting days.

But I told you that the attacks began. The first Council
meeting--I know we're going to come back and pick up at this point
about when I became president--but the first Council meetings I

attended, I used to come in late all the time. I was relaxed and
not worried, so I'd come in late for the meetings. The word was
already running around. . . . Oh, I ran this first meeting and it

went very well, and Swayduck was already by this time saying,
"Imagine that! This guv's got so much talent. Just think, if he
went to bed early, how good he'd be!" (laughter) That was the
first meeting! That was only the beginning! (more, loud laughter)
But they were starting to process and flash and cut from day one.
The plavboy! "Imagine, if this playboy went to bed early, what he
could do!" (laughter)

(Interruption in the tape. Part of the
interview is not recorded.)

HOFFMAN: (in mid-sentence) . . . philosophy.
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BROWN : Well, I don't know which comes first. I would say that
I went to the Chicago local to meet with them because of
what I knew about them as individuals and the impression
that we had about the Chicago local. That impression
was, as I think back on it, that here's a big local, a stable local,
a local that has been a strong and good force within our union inter-
nationally, as opposed to the highly political, volatile kind of
thing that you got out of New York.

Now, if you're a new president and you really wanted to
learn, you wouldn't go to New York, because you'd get handled if
you went there. If you went to Chicago, they would treat you with
courtesy; they would tell you what you wanted to know; and they
wouldn't spend their time telling you how stupid you were and how
great they were. Chicago, you just felt, was the kind of place you
could identify with. They had that reputation as a local union. So
it came easy for me to go to them, and I have no doubt that I also
talked with my father about which locals could I find the best admin-
istrative arrangments, which locals would I find the best reception.
So I went to Chicago for those reasons.

HOFFMAN: Well, that's interesting, because at the time that you
became administrative assistant--we may be jumping ahead
of ourselves here--but you certainly did so with Sway-
duck's support. Right?

BROWN: Yes.

HOFFMAN: And some people thought you were Eddie Swayduck's man.
BROWN: Yes.

HOFFMAN: You're saying that, even at the very beginning, you had

a certain amount of independence. 1Is that the right way
to put it? I mean, why would people think you were
Eddie Swayduck's man? Maybe that's a better way to ask
the question.

BROWN : Well, that gets into a whole new field, because what you
have to first say is that I ran for the International
Council and was elected. When I went on the International
Council--it's true today as it was then--it was a great
experience for me. It was the great awakening. I suddenly saw my
job in its perspective, a local union. Every other local union was
facing the same kind of problems that I was facing, and it was ex-
tremely helpful to me to sit around the board table and hear dis-
cussed the very questions that I was facing. It was most helpful to
me. What came out of that, of course, is that the dominant force on
the International Council was Eddie Swayduck, far and away ahead of
anybody esle. The then president of the international was George
Canary, who was just so different from Eddie Swayduck as to be
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unbelievable! And the new president of the Chicago local was Harry
Spohnholtz. Harry, in his newness as president, wasn't what you'd
call a strong force. He inherited the Chicago local and he ran it
the same way as Canary essentially; that quiet, steady, don't-rock-
the-boat, don't break-too-much-new-ground. But be of great inte-
grity, be good for the union. Swayduck was totally different. He
was a bombastic guy. I don't think he had great intellectual depth.
He sure as hell had drive that ran out of his ears, and everybody
else's ears, and good perspective about how to make things happen.

Well, I frankly was drawn to that kind of a man. When I
saw that shaping up on the board, it came easy to me to just say,
"Wow! This is something I've never seen in my experience." How
would I have seen it? I worked in a shop and became president of
the local; all of a sudden I saw a whole new dimension with respect
to how to make things happen.

GIEBEL: You participated in the Technological Committee?
BROWN: Yes, right.
GIEBEL: And that's an important committee for the union and

probably important for your own visibility. How did
that come about?

BROWN: Well, one of the things that happened, of course, in the
very early stages, was that Swayduck was really clever
as hell at latching on to people that he thought he could
use or he thought had talent. Take vour pick which comes

first. I don't know. 1In the very early stages I didn't have any

difficulty participating in the International Council. I found out
soon enough that almost all of the people there were about the same
as I was. They were local union presidents with their problems,
and I dug in and started to participate. Swayduck had this great
idea of creating a Technological Developments Committee because of
the tremendous change that was occurring in the industry, that our
need to keep abreast of those changes and, equally important, to
cast the union in the role of one that was welcoming change as op-
posed to resisting change. All of us were familiar with the ITU's
reputation of throwing the wrenches into the machinery to hold back
new innovations, and Swayduck correctly said, "Let's cast our union
in the other role, because ours is an expanding segment of the in-
dustry. We don't want to get hung up on apprenticeship ratios.

We want to bring more people in. It's a competitive business with-

in the graphic arts." I think he was one of the first people who

made that point clear to me, either he or Ben Robinson, the lawyer.

That it's an industry within an industry and we're competing with'

the pressmen or the letterpress segment. W<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>